FACULTY SENATE MEETING AUGUST 19, 2014 – 3:30 P.M. - #110 AIME

APPROVED MINUTES

ABSENT WITHOUT ALTERNATE – John Blitz, Marysia Galbraith, Harold Stowell, Clark Midkiff, Glenn Tootle.

ABSENT WITH ALTERNATE – Donna Meester/Stacy Allen, Anup Agrawal/Charlie Adams, John Van Zee/Yuping Bao, Pamela Melton/Amy Traylor.

GUESTS – Cresandra Smothers, Dialog; Katherine Bir, PSA Representative; SGA Representative – Chris Willis, Executive Vice President for Student Affairs.

Roll call and quorum check by Faculty Senate Secretary Rona Donahoe.

The minutes of the Faculty Senate meeting on April 15, 2014 were approved.

The SGA representative, Chris Willis, spoke to the meeting expressing the goals of the SGA are to establish a working relationship with the Faculty Senate to better The University of Alabama. He welcomes any opportunity to speak individually or to answer any questions.

President's Report – (*Steve Miller*) President Miller reported ongoing efforts with Jo Bonner, Vice Chancellor for Governmental Relations and Economic Development, to plan a Legislative Breakfast for the fall.

Several officers and members of the Faculty Senate have attended meetings held by the Diversity Study Committee featuring William Winter Institute for Racial Reconciliation representatives to discuss improving culture and ethnicity campus climates. The meetings have been well attended.

The progress of documentation for SACS approval is on track.

President Miller praised the Faculty Life Committee for its work and report on the smoke free campus issue.

The Faculty Senate Task Force for Excellence in Equity, Inclusion, and Citizenship continues to edit their reports. Report I was presented to the Faculty Senate for discussion and was accepted by acclamation. A survey will be sent to each senator for prioritization of six main points in the report.

Parliamentarian Bob Riter reviewed the finer points of rules of order for discussion including being recognized before speaking and speaking more than one time.

Twenty-one African-American young women were invited to join sororities. Fifteen of the eighteen historically white sororities have African-American members. There was a disturbing incident occurring through social media after a very successful recruitment and bid process. UA President Judy Bonner issued a statement that "behavior, actions and choices that disparage other students are particularly reprehensible and do not represent the values or meet the expectations of our University community. I want to assure you that The University of Alabama will not allow this incident to interrupt our progress. We will continue to work diligently and with a renewed commitment to make sure that UA is a welcoming and inclusive campus every day of the week". Dr. Bonner's foresight to invite every national chapter to have representatives on UA campus during recruitment was commended.

President Miller sent an email to Billy Collins, Poet Laureate of the United States, requesting an appropriate poem addressing the travails of this past year. Chapman Greer read the poem titled "At the Un-National Monument along the Canadian Border" by William E. Stafford.

At the Un-National Monument along the Canadian Border By William E. Stafford

This is the field where the battle did not happen, Where the unknown soldier did not die. This is the field where grass joined hands, Where no monument stands, And the only heroic thing is the sky.

Birds fly here without any sound, Unfolding their wings across the open. No people killed or were killed on this ground Hallowed by neglect and an air so tame That people celebrate it by forgetting its name.

Donna Meester was absent due to the illness of her mother.

Rona Donahoe's daughter was married this summer.

Secretary's Report – (*Rona Donahoe*) There are three new senators, due to vacancies created by resignations and sabbatical leave. Grace Lee of the Law School, Jody DeRidder of University Libraries and Amy Dayton, Arts & Sciences (English) will fill those vacancies. The University Standing Committee vacancies will be filled by Jody DeRidder for the Human Relations Council and the Student and Campus Life position will be filled by Nikhil Bilwakesh.

The Legislative Agenda Committee has a vacancy due to Margaret Garner assuming administrative duties.

Report I "Working as a University to Help Shape a Model of Excellence for Student Government Elections" from the Faculty Senate Task Force for Excellence in Equity, Inclusion, and Citizenship (TEELC) was presented for discussion and voting. Senator John Vincent moved for approval with a second by Senator Reuben Cook. Senator Cook called to question. The Faculty Senate voted unanimously to approve the report. The Faculty Senate Steering Committee will send an email to each senator for prioritization of six of the fourteen recommendations made by the Task Force.

A senator questioned the position and process of fraternity recruitment. The SGA representative could only answer pertaining to his fraternity. His fraternity has had two events and will follow last year's process. Fraternity presidents signed a resolution composed by the SGA to follow the sorority lead in seeking diversity in their membership.

New Business – It was suggested to assess the issue of sexual assault on campus. This would include data identification of any existing problems and a method to address those issues. It was suggested to invite Beth Howard, UA Title IX Coordinator, to speak to the Faculty Senate. Ms. Howard will be invited by Reuben Cook and this issue will be assigned to the Faculty Senate Student Affairs Committee.

A UA task force for academic advising is being formed. It is believed this is through the Professional Staff Assembly and partnering with them for updates and input would be advantageous. This will be assigned to the Academic Affairs Committee. The Provost is following up on past campus climate surveys. Questions have been changed on the surveys preventing accurate assessment of data.

The Professional Staff Assembly will be Thursday, August 21, at 3:30 P.M.

Faculty and Senate Governance – (Charlotte Herrin & Marilyn Handley) An election was held to replace Tyra Hilliard's position on the Mediation Committee. There are five nominees. Kevin Corcoran, Professor in the School of Social Work, was elected.

Financial Affairs – (*Reuben Cook & Rainer Schad*) An email was sent to the committee members asking for input concerning the most important issues for the committee's focus this year. Dr. Lynda Gilbert, Vice President for Financial Affairs, will be invited to meet with this committee in September to address the debt of the University. She will be invited to speak with this committee in October concerning the University's budget following budget approval by UA's Board of Trustees. UA's State appropriations have decreased \$60 million dollars since 2008. Originally the appropriations were 1/3 Higher Education and 2/3 K–12. Today K-12 appropriation is 74% and Higher Education is 26%.

Student Affairs – (*Joanne Hale & JoAnn Oliver*) The gift card program established last year for financially challenged students will be continued. A student team developed an online scholarship application program targeting available scholarships for UA students. This program has been tested and is in a soft release state for the next few months with

the end result being availability for students through MyBama. The student team members presenting this program to the Faculty Senate were outstanding. The Student Affairs Committee will be exploring a proposal for Graduate Students to participate and have a role in the Student Government Association.

Research & Service – (*Steve Burch & Andreas Piepke*) The committee co-chairs are in the process of setting up their first meeting to establish the subjects they will be addressing.

Faculty Life – (*Pamela Payne-Foster & Ed Stephenson*) The Faculty Life Committee will be considering a tobacco free campus, a diversity climate survey and child/elder care issues.

Information Technology – (Mangala Krishnamurthy & Clark Midkiff) Jody DeRitter is a new member of this committee. Any problems with technology should be forwarded to this committee. The committee will be meeting with John McGowan in the near future.

Academic Affairs – (*John Vincent & Patricia Parmelee*) The Academic Affairs Committee will be meeting the first Tuesday of September in 2006 Shelby Hall. Their issues include military credit policy, Faculty Handbook revision, clinical faculty definition for the Handbook and other issues. The University has been hiring more faculty members without a Faculty Handbook policy/definition of a clinical faculty member. The definition is different among the colleges. The Faculty Handbook revisions consist of telephone numbers, computer addresses, and other grammatical corrections and then voted on as a whole.

Meeting adjourned 4:45 P.M.

Report I

WORKING AS A UNIVERSITY TO HELP SHAPE A MODEL OF EXCELLENCE FOR STUDENT GOVERNMENT ELECTIONS

Faculty Senate Task Force for Excellence in Equity, Inclusion, and Citizenship

(TEEIC)

Introduction: A Cooperative Effort

In response to the Faculty Senate Steering Committee's desire to affect the Spring 2014 Student Government Association elections, the TEEIC focused its initial efforts on discovering potential areas for election reform. To fulfill this request, the TEEIC has worked closely with numerous groups and officials in an effort that would be characterized as cooperative, progressive, and motivated by a genuine desire to develop a model system for student government elections. Those particularly noteworthy of thanks

include former Vice President for Student Affairs Mark Nelson, Assistant Director of the Office of Student Conduct Kelli Knox-Hall, and the members of the Elections Board cochaired by two exceptional students, Robert Herron and Madalyn Vaughn. Together, the TEEIC and the Elections Board found numerous areas of common concern, as the Elections Board worked swiftly to implement changes prior to the 2014 SGA Elections.

Beyond working with these individuals, the TEEIC also conducted an in depth review of the Student Government Elections manual and the Student Code of Conduct. We were pleased to learn that SGA elections are governed by a 22 page code that is reviewed and modified annually in an ongoing effort to make student government elections fair, affordable, and inclusive. As an outgrowth of this cooperative effort, the TEEIC is aware of the following areas of opportunity that will move the University toward a model system for student government elections.

New Policies and Structures

- I. Additional Regulations to Prevent Obstruction of SGA Elections. The Task Force recommends adding a new section to the SGA Elections manual titled *Campaign Obstruction of Elections* which includes the following new regulations:
 - A. No person shall violate the right to privacy in voting by observing how a student votes.
 - B. Requiring a student to produce evidence of voting or voting for specific candidates, for example, through voting in front of someone or producing a photo of one's ballot, is prohibited.
 - C. Retaliation for reporting election violations is prohibited.
- II. **Language Prohibiting Coercing Students to Vote**. Add to Section 3 of the SGA Elections Manual, language that prohibits coercing students to vote through "threats" or offering "anything of tangible value." That is, protect a student's right *not* to vote by prohibiting coercion to vote.
- III. Mechanisms to Monitor and Enforce New and Existing Election Codes. We encourage the Elections Board or other relevant bodies to develop practical means to police the new codes presented here, as well as existing codes that ensure student voting rights and the integrity of SGA elections.
- IV. Extension of the Statute of Limitation for being Held Accountable for Voter Fraud. Add language to the Voter Fraud Section of the Elections Manual (Section 10 D.) that clarifies that students can still report voter fraud after eight hours of the fraudulent action and that students and organizations can

still be held accountable for voter fraud after eight hours of the action. We recommend that students can be held accountable for committing election violations until the election of new SGA executives and senators for the following academic year.

- V. Clarification of What Qualifies as a Residence Hall in Campaigning. Clarify in Section 2.E of the SGA Elections Manual that the campaign regulations governing residence halls apply to Mallet Assembly, on-campus apartments, and fraternity and sororities. To further ensure that all residence halls are treated the same, clarify that the prohibition on the hanging of campaign banners applies to Mallet Assembly, on-campus apartments, and fraternities and sororities.
- VI. Language Prohibiting Mobile Voting Stations Off Campus. Modify the language of Section 7 B of the Elections Manual so that it reads "Candidates or organizations may not set up mobile voting stations, laptops or polling locations to solicit votes on or off campus." The current language prohibits such activities only on campus.
- VII. Increases in Financial Penalties for Election Code Violations. The Task Force recognizes the importance of exercising discretion in determining the size of fines for election code violations. However, to serve as a stronger deterrent to committing violations, we recommend that the minimum fine begin at \$50.00 and escalate contingent upon the seriousness or recurring nature of the violation. The current fines for minor violation range from \$5.00 to \$25.00 and are perceived as being too small and affordable to deter violations.
- VIII. **Acknowledgement of Students Rights on Election Ballots**. On ballots, include a statement of voting rights that students must acknowledge having read before registering their candidate preferences (see Appendix A on page 5).
- IX. Acknowledgment of the Capstone Creed on Election Ballots. Similarly, have the students acknowledge having read the Capstone Creed before registering their candidate preferences. (see Appendix A on page 5)
- X. **Short Rollover Statements of Candidate Platforms on Ballots**. Structure that ballot so that each Senatorial and Executive office candidate has a short rollover statement of their campaign platform. Allow the candidates to include their party identification on their rollover statements. ¹

.

¹The Task Force debated at length and was divided over whether to recommend a partisan ballot—that is, including the party identification of SGA candidates on the ballot. Allowing party identification on the rollover position statement of candidates' proved to be an acceptable alternative to everyone.

- XI. Web Connections to Broader Statements of Candidate Platforms. Provide web connections on ballots that allow voters to connect to broader statements of each candidate's campaign platform.
- XII. Voting Polls in 2015 Contingent on the 2014 SGA Elections. Whether to return to voting polls proved to be the most highly debated reform considered. By a narrow margin, a majority of Task Force members supported returning to voting polls for SGA elections. However, all members recognized the difficulty of implementing voting polls in 2014. To manage 12 polls with two staff members working in two-hour shifts over two days could require between 144 to 288 trained staff members. All members, by contrast, supported the idea of monitoring the outcome of the 2014 elections and the effects of the implementation of other reforms to help determine whether polls should be used for the 2015 SGA elections.
- XIII. **Reforms Considered but Not Supported.** Beyond the preceding reforms, the Task Force also considered whether to allow Executive Office candidates to use chalk in their campaigns; to allow campaigning on Vimeo, Tumblr, and Pinterest; to raise campaign spending limits; to place candidate party identifications on the ballot; to penalize infraction through taking away votes from candidates; and to deny students the right to vote in upcoming elections if found guilty of elections violations.

Developing a New Elections Culture at UA: An Annual Campus Citizenship Campaign and Comprehensive Efforts to Develop Model Citizens

To help reduce the apathy of politically alienated students, to develop model campus citizens, and to inform students of their political rights and protections, the TEEIC recommends an annual campus citizenship campaign and a comprehensive socialization effort to develop a new culture at UA.

- I. An Annual Campus Citizenship Campaign. We recommend that Student Affairs, the Faculty Senate, University Relations, and faculty experts work together to develop and execute an annual citizenship campaign that encourages students to actively participate as members of our University community by exercising their voting rights and becoming involved in student government. As a part of the campaign we recommend:
 - A. Utilize contemporary social media and the Crimson White to disseminate the citizenship campaign messages.
 - B. As part of the citizenship campaign, make a point to clarify student voting rights, remind students of their obligation to report and speak-out against campaign violations, and assure students protections against retaliation for reporting campaign violations.

- C. Tailor the citizenship campaign to a variety of audiences, including both independent and Greek audiences.
- D. Use the Faculty Senate listserv to help promote the campaign and specifically encourage faculty to, *voluntarily*, encourage their students to vote and to become involved in student government.
- E. Where relevant to the classroom learning objectives and with voluntary consent, involve public relations classes, communication classes, and political sciences classes in designing and disseminating the citizenship campaign.
- II. A Comprehensive Efforts to Develop Model Citizens. We further recommend that Student Affairs, Academic Affairs, and relevant faculty experts work together to affect SGA elections as a part of a comprehensive effort to develop model campus citizens. Involving both the academic and extracurricular sides of the University, this effort might include a common ethical component and common call to civic duty across the myriad of leadership development and personal development programs on campus.

This effort might also include new lower-level courses and redesigned existing courses directed at inculcating ethical behavior and civic duty early in a college student's career. Developing model citizenship will be a recurring theme that *will be addressed in greater detail in future reports*.

Appendix A. Your Voting Rights and Obligations ceding the ballot>

Instructions: In the left hand column, please check every box acknowledging that you have read and understand the Capstone Creed and your voting rights and responsibilities.

pi rsu	Capstone Creed. As a member of the University of Alabama community, I will ue
respo	cnowledge; act with fairness, honesty, and respect; foster individual and civic onsibility; and strive for excellence."
You	have a right:
T	To cast a vote and to do so in privacy. No one is to observe how you vote.
☐ th	Not to present evidence of voting or voting for specific candidates, for example, hrough voting in front of someone, producing photos ("screenshots") of your ballot, or providing evidence of your voting receipt.
ir	To vote for the candidates of your choice without consequences—not to be coerced or influenced to vote for specific candidates through rewards or threats such as fines and community service requirements.
_	Not to vote without consequences—not to be coerced or influenced to vote through ewards or threats, such as fines or community service requirements.
ΠΛ	Not to be retaliated against for reporting a voting rights violations.
T	To the confidentiality of your report of a voting rights violations.
your	e: You have an obligation to report any violations of the preceding voting rights. If voting rights are violated or you observe another person's voting rights being ited, contact University officials at the following email address or phone number:
	stigated, and, unless you instruct otherwise, the staff responsible for addressing ag rights violations will protect the confidentiality of your report